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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Dear Shareholders,

We have the pleasure in presenting you the financial results of Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company
- Takaful - Ascana Insurance (“ASCANA”) (the “Company”) (“Sukoon Takaful”) for the year ended 31
December 2023,

Reflecting on the year gone by, May 2023 opened a new chapter in the history of ASCANA, post-acquisition
by Oman Insurance Company PJSC (“Sukoon™). This acquisition has realigned our strategic vision and has
provided us with the necessary resources and support, leveraging Sukoon’s strong heritage, market
positioning and specialised underwriting capabilities as we embark on this transformative journey.

We immediately initiated a comprehensive assessment of out operations, identifying inefficiencies and
devising strategic measures to enhance our operational efficacy. This endeavor led to a significant
restructuring, optimising our resources, cost efficiencies and focusing on core competencies. Corrective
actions have now been taken on the takaful portfolio along with solvency bolstering steps which includes
the divestment of non-core assets. The effects of these actions will start resonating in our results positively
in 2024.

In Q3 2023, we have received an ‘A’ (Stable) rating by S&P. This was followed by a rebrand of our company
to Sukoon Takaful. aligning ourselves with out parent company’s brand identity, further showcasing our
Sharia-compliant takaful solutions under the larger Sukoon umbrella. This strategic branding not only
bolsters our market presence and positioning but also paves the way for sustainable growth in the years to
come as Sukoon Takaful aims to be a reference in the region in the takaful space.

Looking ahead to 2024, the transformation journey we have embatked on will continue with full
momentum, where the strategic initiatives implemented this year will fully start delivering results. We are
confident that the company is expected to tutnaround by end of the financial year 2024 coupled with new
product offerings expected to be launched during the same pedod.

Takaful revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 has reached AED 126.6 million against AED 128.5
million in the last year.

Net loss attributable to shareholders revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 has reached AED 76.5
million against the net loss of AED 30.7 million in the last year.

Participants loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 has reached AED 70.2 million against a loss of
AED 40.97 million in the last year. This loss is predominantly pertaining to business written ptior to 2H
2023. Post 2H 2023, pricing has been adequately adjusted and is now being closely monitored.

We would like to put on record our sincere appreciation and gratitude towards all stakeholders of Sukoon
Takaful. We would also like to thank our management and staff of the company for their sincere and
dedicated contribution to the successful growth of the Company.

May God; the Almighty; guide out steps.

W

On behalf of the Board,
Saood Abdulaziz Al Ghutair
Chairman

31 January 2024



GrantThornton

Grant Thornton Audit and

Accounting Limited
(Dubai Branch)

The Offices 5

Level 3

Office 302, 303
One Central, DWTC
Dubai, UAE

P.O. Box 1620

T+971 4 388 9925
F+971 4 388 9915
www.grantthornton.ae

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholdets of Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful —
ASCANA Insurance

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) - Takaful -
ASCANA Insurance (the “Company”), Dubai, United Arab Emirates which comptise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including 2 summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company 2s at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with Infernational Ethics Standards
Board for Acconntant’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and IESBA code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters, and any comments we make
on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these mattets.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA
Insurance (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)

ey Audit Matter How ourt audit addressed the key audit matter
Valuaton of (Rejrakaful Contract Assets and Liabilities : : : |
(Re)takaful contract liabilities and retakaful | Our audit procedures in conjunction with our
contract assets involves significant judgements and | actuarial specialists, included:

estimates particularly with respect to the eligibility
of the premium allocation approach (PAA) model
and estimation of the liabilities for incurred claims,

- Understood and evaluated the process, the
design of controls in place to determine
valuation of takaful contract liabilities and

These liabilities primarily include determination of retakaful contract assets;

expected premium receipts and expected ultimate | - Assessment of the competence, capabilities and
cost of claims which are within the contract | Objectivity of the management appointed
boundaties. actuaty;

- Tested the completeness, and on sample basis,
The calculation for these liabilities includes the accuracy and relevance of data used to
significant estimation and involvement of actuarial |  determine future cashflows;

experts in order to ensure appropriateness of | -~ Evaluate and assess the recoverability of takaful
methodology, assumptions and data used to receivables;

determine the estimated future cash flows and the | - Evaluated the appropriateness of the
appropriateness of the discount rates used to methodology, significant assumptions including

determine the present value of these cashflows. risk adjustment, PAA eligibility assessment and
expenses included within the fulfilment

cashflows. This included consideration of the
reasonableness of assumptons against actual
historical experience and the appropriateness of
any judgments applied; and

- We independently reperformed the calculation
to assess the mathematical accuracy of the
takaful contract liabilities and retakaful contract
assets on selected classes of business, patticularly
focusing on largest and most uncertain reserves,

‘Disclosure of transition impact of adopting IERS 17 %
We determined the disclosure of the impact of | Our audit procedures, among others, include:
adopting IFRS 17 to be a key audit matter because
of the significant changes introduced by
the standard, which includes significant estimates
and judgements, and because the impacts will be of
particular importance to the readers of these
financial statements.

- Assessed whether the judgements applied by
management in determining their accounting
policies are in accordance with IFRS 17;

- Using our actuarial specialist team members,
evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology used to determine discount rates as

In particular, we have focused on the following key at the transition date and historic periods where

judgements that management have taken on| the fully retrospective approach is adopted;
implementing IFRS 17:

- The determination of the transition approach
adopted for each group of takaful contracts;

(€F]
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA
Insurance (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)

" Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the kev audit matter
Disclosure of transition impact of adopting IFRS 17 (Continued)

- The methodology adopted, and key assumptions | - Evaluation of the appropriateness of significant
used to determine the impact and restatement of | assumptions including  risk adjustment, loss

previously reported numbers in accordance with component, level of aggregation, PAA eligibility

IFRS 17. assessment and expenses included within the
fulfilment cashflows;

- Disclosure of the impact of restatement, in | - Evaluation of the completeness, and on sample

accordance with IFRS 17. basis, the accuracy and relevance of the data used

to determine the impact of IFRS 17 adoption
and restatement; and
- Evaluated the reasonableness of the quantitative
and qualitative disclosutes included in the
financial statetnents in accordance with IFRS 17.

Valnation of investment properies. :
The Company holds investment properties under
the fair value model as at 31 December 2023
amounting to AED 67.51 million (2022: AED |- Assessing the competence, capabilities, and
160.64 million), as detailed in note 12 to the objectivity of external valuers;

financial statements. The fair value estimate | - Evaluating the accuracy and completeness of the
requires significant judgement and estimates by source data used in the calculation of fair values;
management and independent two external | . Assessing the appropriateness of the key
valuers. The Company has involved independent assumptions and methodologies used; and
external valuets in order to value the investment | _ Performing an independent calculation after

properties for the purpose of determining the fair catrying out enquiries with management and
value fot inclusion in the financial statements. The independent valuer, including performing

existence of significant estimation and judgement | oconableness computation by using publicly
coupled with change in valuation assumptions used available soutces of information to
could result in material change. Therefore, the independently corroborate  the  valuation

v.alulation of these Investment properties was petformed by management expetts.
significant to our audit.

Our audit procedures, ong othets, included:
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA
Insurance (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Board of Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’
teport thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thete is a matetial misstatement of
this other information, we ate required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regatd.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and their preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE
Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 and Federal Law No 48 of 2023 (previously Federal Law No.6 of 2007), and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparzng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial teporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Repott
To the shareholders of Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful - ASCANA
Insurance (continued)

Repott on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As patt of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identfy and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedutes responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The sk of not detecting a matetial
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgety, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedutes that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s intetnal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncettainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as 2 going concetn. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to dtaw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures ate inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our anditor’s report. However, future events ot
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements reptesent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those chatged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are thetefore the key audit
matters. We desctibe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law ot regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful ~ ASCANA
Insurance (continued)

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

As required by the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, we report that:

)  We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

if) The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021;

iii) The Company has maintained proper books of account;

iv) 'The financial information included in the Boards of Directors’ Report, in so far as it relates to these
financial statements, is consistent with the books of account of the Company;

v) Note 5 to the financial statements discloses purchase of securities by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023;

vi) Note 9 to the financial statements discloses materal related patty transactions, and the terms under
which they were conducted,;

vii) Based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which
causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December
2023 any of the applicable provisions of the Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, or in respect of the Company,
its Articles of Association which would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at
31 December 2023; and

viii) Note 27 to the financial statements discloses the social contributions made duting the year ended
31 December 2023.

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No 48 of 2023 (pteviously Federal Law No.6 of 2007), we
report that we have obtained all the information and explanation we considered necessary for the purpose
of our audit.
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Dr. Osama El Bakry
Registration No: 935

Dubai, United Arab Emirates

31 January 2024



Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA Insurance

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2023

Assets

Participants’ assets

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

Retakaful contract assets

Prepayments and other receivables

Due from shareholders

Cash and bank balances

Total participants’ assets

Shareholders’ assets

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
Investments at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”)

Investment properties

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Deferred policy acquisition cost
Prepayments and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Statutory deposits

Total shareholders’ assets

Total assets

Notes

- ol - JEN T,

12
13
14

Restated Restated

31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
1,625 9,060 3,765
17,166 17,227 15,168
1,318 1,140 1,738
30,755 67,756 29,350
107,717 36,630 43,694
158,581 131,813 93,715
28,614 59,384 54,212
557 4,053 11,225
67,510 160,641 158,715
1,054 1,938 2,335
408 575 481
4,956 8,983 9,324
4,809 3,538 4365
96,446 79,901 101,045
10,000 10,000 10,000
214,354 329,013 351,702
372,935 460,826 445417

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral patt of these financial statements.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA Insurance
Statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2023
Restated Restated
Notes 2023 2022 2021
AED’000 AED000 AED000
Participants’ liabilitics and deficit
Participants’ liabilitics
I'akaful contract liabilities 7 147,950 123,314 84,200
Retakaful contract liabilities 7 1,347 346 2,052
Other liabilitics 15 9,284 8,153 7,463
Total participants’ liabilitics 158,581 131,813 93,715
Participants’® deficit
Qard Massan against deficir in participants’
fund 16 (159,125) (88,879) (47,902)
ILess: Provision against Qard Hassan to
participants’ fund 16 (159,125) 88,879 47,902
Total participants’ liabilities and deficit 158,581 131,813 93,715
Shareholders’ liabilities and cquity
Sharcholders’ liabilitics
Iimployees’ end of service benefits 17 1,371 2,386 2,292
Duc to participants 11 30,755 67,756 29,350
Other liabilities 15 6,907 7,423 9,724
Total sharcholders’ liabilitics 39,033 77,565 41,366
Shateholders’ equity
Share capital 18 154,000 154,000 154,000
Statutory reserve 19 77,000 77,000 77,000
Rerakaful reserves 20 695 479 309
Cumulative changes in fair value of
FVT'OCT investments 21 (4,960) (5,363) (251)
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings (51,414) 25,332 79,278
Total shareholders’ equity 175,321 251,448 310,336
Total shareholdcts’ liabilitics and equity 214,354 329,013 351,702
Total liabilities, patticipants’ fund and
equity . 372,935 460,826 445417

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 January 2024 and were signed
on their behalf by:

W

(RA AL

Sacod Abdulalaziz Al Ghurair Mt &hmed M.A.Abushanab
Chairman CEO

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statcments.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA Insurance

Statement of profit or loss
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Attributable to participants’

Takaful revenue

Takaful service expenses

Takaful service result before retakaful contracts held
Allocation of retakaful contributions

Amounts recoverable from retakaful for incurred claims
Net expenses from retakaful contracts held

Takaful service result

Takaful finance expenses for takaful contracts issued
Retakaful finance income for retakaful contracts held
Net takaful loss

Investment income

Other income

Wakala fees

Mudarib shate

Deficit for the year attributable to participants

Notes

23

24

24

25

26
26

Restated

2023 2022
AED000 AED’000
126,584 128,469
(152,272) (124,703)
(25,688) 3,766
(44,486) (33,517)
28,402 26,579
(16,084) (6,938)
(41,772) (3,157)
(1,098) (257)
274 272
(42,596) (3,193)
3,103 692
1,471 563
(31,293) (38,867)
(931) (208)
(70,246) (40,977

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful - ASCANA Insutance

Statement of profit or loss (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Attributable to shareholdets
Investment income

Other income

Total investment income
Wakala fees

Mudatib share

Expenses

Policy acquisition costs

General and administrative expenses
(Loss)/income for the year before Qard Hassan
Provision against Qard Hassan to participants

Loss for the year attributable to shareholders

Loss per share (AED)
Basic and diluted loss per shate

Notes

25

26

26

27

29

Restated

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
1,610 13,624
1,785 1,956
3,395 15,580
31,293 38,867
931 208
35,619 54,655
(16,857) (16,652)
(25,046) (27,703)
(6,284) 10,300
(70,246) (40,977)
(76,530) (30,677)
(0.497) {0.199)

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA Insurance

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Restated
2023 2022
Notes AED’000 AED’000
Attributable to shareholders
Loss for the year (76,530) (30,677)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Ttems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Debt investments designated at FVTOCI re-classified to
income statement 25 3,019 -
Unrealised loss on debt instruments designated at FVTOCI (924) (5,112)
Itenis that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Unrealised loss in fair value of equity investments designated at
FVTOCI (1,692) -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
attributable to shareholders 403 (5,112)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to
shareholders (76,127) (35,789

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful ~ ASCANA Insutance
Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Restated
2023 2022
Notes  AED’000 AED’000
Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year (76,530) (30,677)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 13 897 925
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 292 218
Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets at FVTPL (42) 201
Realised gain on disposal of financial assets at FVIPL (15) D
Rental income (7,798) (8,140)
Dividends income from financial assets (554) (1,171)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at FVTOCI 3,019 -
Loss on sale of investment properties 3,181 -
Profit on sale of assets (68) (1)
Loss /(gain) on fair value of investment propetties 12 6,475 (1,926)
Funding cost on lease liability 20 36
Profit on wakala deposits (9,299) (4,004)
Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity 17 337 261
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital (80,085) (44,279)
Change in retakaful contract assets 61 (2,059)
Change in prepayments and other receivables 1,162 938
Change in deferred acquisition costs : 4,027 341
Change in takaful contract liabilities 24,636 39,114
Change in retakaful contract liabilities 1,001 (1,706)
Change in other liabilities 1,121 (1,134)
Cash used in operating activities (48,077) (8,785)
Employees end of service benefits paid 17 (1,352) (153)
Net cash used in operating activities (49,429) (8,938)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment 13 (92) (528)
Purchase of intangible assets 14 (125) (312)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 147 1
Putchase of other financial assets (2,734) (19,054)
Proceeds from sale of other financial assets 41,876 10,447
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 83,475 -
Rental income received 7,942 9,008
Profit received on sukuk and wakala deposit 6,544 3,623
Dividend received 554 1,171
Change in wakala deposit with maturity more than 3 months (145,144) 9,824
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities (7,557) 14,180
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease liability (526) (526)
Dividend paid - (23,100)
Net cash used in financing activities (526) (23,626)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (57,512) (18,384)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yeat 71,022 89,406
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (note 31) 13,510 71,022

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1 Legal status and activities

Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company PLC - Takaful - ASCANA Insurance (the "Company") is a public
shareholding company and was registered in 1992. The Company is engaged in takaful and retakaful of all classes
of business in accordance with the provisions of the United Arab Emitates (“TJAE") Federal Law No. 6 of 2007,
as amended, concerning Financial Regulations of Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of United Arab
Emirates and regulation of its operations.

The Shateholders Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting held on 19 March 2014 approved conversion of the
Company’s business from conventional insurance to Takaful insurance. The Board of Directors appointed an
Intemal Sharia Supervision Committee for overseeing the compliance with Sharia.

During the year, Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 has been issued with effective date of 30 November 2023, repealing
Federal Law No. 6 of 2007. In accordance with Article 112 of the Federal Law No. 48 of 2023, the Company has
6 months from this date of effect to apply the provisions of new Law.

The Company started issuing shott term takaful contracts from 1 February 2015 in connection with life and non-
life takaful such as motor, marine, fire, engineering, medical and general accident risks (collectively known as general
takaful) and the name of the Company was changed to Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company PLC - Takaful
ASCANA Insurance. The Company only opetates in UAE, through its Dubai and Abu Dhabi offices.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Oman Insurance Company P.S.C. (“Sukoon Insurance’) has acquired
93% shareholding of the company from its key shateholders. Now the Company is a subsidiary of Sukoon
Insurance which is incorporated in the Emitate of Dubai.

The ultimate patent company is Mashreq Bank (PSC) which is incorporated in the Emirate of Dubai.

This financial statement has been prepared in accordance with the requitements of the applicable laws and
regulations, including UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021.

The address of the Company’s registered office is P.O. Box 1993, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.
2 Statement of compliance with IFRS and basis of preparation

These finandial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Repotting Standards
(IFRSs) promulgated by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and interpretations thereof issued by
the International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee and in compliance with the applicable
requirements of U.A.E Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, relating to commetcial companies, and of UAE Federal Law
No. 48 of 2023, concerning Finandal Regulations of Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of United
Arab Emirates and regulation of its operations. These financial statements are prepated in UAE Dithams (“AED™)
being the economic, functional and reporting currency, rounded to the nearest thousand.

While applying the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards 17-Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17),
the Company has not considered shareholders’ expenses in IFRS 17 assessment in line with Asticle 3.3 of Section
7 of the Financial Regulations for Takaful Companies (FRTC) and the relevant Shatiah Board decisions. Further,
in line with requirements of FRTC, the Company has only considered a fixed Wakala fee while applying the
requirement of IFRS 17. Policy acquisition cost and general and administrative expenses accounts along with
associated balance sheet items are part of the shareholders’ accounts and presented separately.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful - ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 Statement of compliance with IFRS and basis of preparation (continued)

New and revised IFRSs and interpretations applied on the financial statements

The following relevant standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the
IASB:

Standard
number Title Effective date
IAS 1 Disclosute of Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and 1 Janary 2023

IFRS Practice Statement 2
IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8 1 January 2023

IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
single transaction — Amendments to IAS 12

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

1 January 2023

These standards have been adopted by the Company and did not have a material impact on these financial
statements, except for the adoption of “IFRS 17 Insurance contracts”, which is detailed in note 3 to the
financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The impact of the new standards, interptetations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up
to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements ate disclosed below. The Company intends
to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard

number Title Effective date

IAS1 Amendment to IAS 1 — Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024

IFRS 16 Amendment to IFRS 16 — Leases on sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
3 Significant accounting policies

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of takaful
contracts, re takaful contracts and investment contracts with discretionaty participation features. It
introduces a model that measures groups of contracts based on the Company’s estimates of the present
value of future cash flows that are expected to atise as the Company fulfils the contracts, an explicit risk
adjustment for non-financial risk and a contractual service margin.

Under IFRS 17, takaful revenue in each reporting period represents the changes in the liabilides for
temaining coverage that relate to services for which the Company expects to receive consideration and an
allocation of contributions that relate to recovering takaful acquisition cash flows. In addition, investment
components are no longet included in takaful revenue and takaful setrvice expenses.

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts for annual petiods on or after 1 January 2023. The Company
has restated comparative information applying the transitional provisions to IFRS 17. The natute of the
changes in accounting policies can be summarised, as follows:

Changes to classification and measurement

The adoption of IFRS 17 did not change the classification of the Company’s takaful contracts. The
Company was previously permitted under IFRS 4 to continue accounting using its previous accounting
policies. However, IFRS 17 establishes specific principles for the tecognition and measurement of takaful
contracts issued and retakaful contracts held by the Company.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IERS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Changes to classification and measurement (continued)

Under IFRS 17, the Company’s takaful contracts issued, and retakaful contracts held are all eligible to be
measured by applying the premium allocation approach (PAA) (called as “contribution allocation
approach” (CAA) for takaful company). The CAA simplifies the measurement of takaful contracts in
comparison with the general model in IFRS 17.

The Company applies the CAA to simplify the measurement of all of its takaful and retakaful contracts.
When measuring liabiliies for remaining coverage, the CAA is similar to the Company’s previous
accounting treatment. However, when measuring liabilities for outstanding claims, the Company now
discounts the future cash flows (unless they are expected to occur in one year or less from the date on
which the claims are incurred) and includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Income and expenses from retakaful contracts other than takaful finance income and expenses are now
presented as a single net amount in profit or loss. Previously, amounts recovered from Retakaful operators
and retakaful expenses were presented separately.

The measurement principles of the CAA differ from the ‘earned contribution approach’ used by the
Company under IFRS 4 in the following key areas:

= The liability for remaining coverage reflects contributions received less deferred acquisition expenses
less amounts recognised in revenue for takaful services provided;

*  Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage includes an adjustment for the time value of
money and the effect of financial risk where the contribution due date and the related petiod of
coverage are more than 12 months apart;

*  Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage involves an explicit evaluation of risk adjustment
for non-financial risk when a group of contracts is onerous in order to calculate a loss component
(previously these may have formed part of the unexpired risk teserve provision); and

*  Measurement of the liability for incurred claims (previously claims outstanding and incurred-but-not-
reported (IBNR) is determined on a discounted probability-weighted expected value basis and includes
an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Changes to presentation and disclosure

For presentation in the statement of financial position, the Company aggregates takaful and retakaful
contracts issued and retakaful contracts held, respectively and presents separately:

¢ Groups of takaful and retakaful contracts issued that are assets;

*  Groups of takaful and retakaful contracts issued that are liabilities;
*  Groups of retakaful contracts held that are assets; and

*  Groups of retakaful contracts held that are Labilities.

The groups refetred to above ate those established at initial recognition in accordance with the IFRS 17
requirements.

The line item descriptions in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have been
changed significantly compared with last year. Previously, the Company reported the following line items:

= Gross written contributions

*  Net written contributions

*  Changes in contribution reserves
*  Gross takaful claims

¢ Net takaful claims
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) ~ Takaful - ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Changes to presentation and disclosure (continued)

Instead, IFRS 17 requires separate presentation of:

Takaful revenue

Takaful service expenses

Takaful finance income or expenses

Income ot expenses from retakaful contracts held

The Company provides disaggregated qualitative and quantitative information about:

* Amounts recognised in its financial statements from takaful contracts
*  Significant judgements, and changes in those judgements, when applying the standard.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 17 have been applied using a full
retrospective approach to the extent practicable. Under the full retrospective approach, at 1 January 2022
the Company:

identified, recognised and measured each group of takaful and retakaful contracts as if IFRS 17
had always been applied;

identified, recognised and measured any assets for takaful acquisition cash flows as if IFRS 17 had
always been applied;

derecognised previously reported balances that would not have existed if IFRS 17 had always been
applied. These included takaful receivables and payables, and provisions for levies that are
attributable to existing takaful contracts. Under IFRS 17, they are included in the measurement of
the takaful contracts; and

recognised any resulting net difference in equity.

The Company has applied the transition provisions in IFRS 17 and has disclosed the impact of the adoption
of IFRS 17 on each financial statement line item. The effects of adopting IFRS 17 on the financial statement
at 1 January 2022 are presented in the statement of changes in equity.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful - ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Transition (continued)

The table below summarise the impact of initial application of IFRS 17 as at 1 January 2022:

As Effect of
previously  application
reported of IFRS 17 Restated
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
ASSETS
Participants’ assets
Takaful and retakaful receivables 32,796 (32,796) -
Retakaful contract asset 27,373 (12,205) 15,168
Amounts due from related parties 568 (568) -
LIABILITIES
Participants’ liabilities and deficit
Participants’ liabilities
Takaful contract liabilities 98,812 (14,612) 84,200
Retakaful contract liabilities - 2,052 2,052
Takaful and retakaful payables 31,297 (31,297) -
Amounts due to related patties 8 8 -
Deferred discount 2,290 (2,290 -
EQUITY
Retained earnings 309,751 586 310,337
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Takaful and retakaful contracts classification

The Company issues takaful contracts in the normal coutse of business, under which it accepts significant
takaful risk from its participants. As a general guideline, the Company determines whethet it has significant
takaful risk, by comparing benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur. takaful contracts can also transfer financial tisk.

Takaful and retakaful contracts accounting treatment
Separating components from Takaful and retakaful contracts

The Company assesses its takaful and retakaful products to determine whether they contain distinct
components which must be accounted for under another IFRS instead of under IFRS 17.

Some retakaful contracts issued contain profit commission arrangements. Undet these arrangements, there
is a minimum guaranteed amount that the participant will always receive — either in the form of profit
commission, or as claims, or another contractual payment itrespective of the insured event happening. The
minimum guaranteed amounts have been assessed to be highly interrelated with the component of the
retakaful contracts and are, therefore, non-distinct investment components which atre not accounted for
separately.

Level of aggregation

IFRS 17 requires a company to determine the level of aggregation for applying its requitements. The
Company previously applied aggtegation levels under IFRS 4, which were significantly higher thaa the level
of aggregation required by IFRS 17. The level of aggregation for the Company is determined firstly by
dividing the business written into portfolios. Pottfolios comprise groups of contracts with similar risks
which ate managed together. Portfolios are further divided based on expected profitability at inception into
two categories: onerous contracts and others. This means that, for determining the level of aggregation, the
Company identifies a contract as the smallest ‘unit’, ie., the lowest common denominator. Howevet, the
Company makes an evaluation of whether a seties of contracts need to be treated together as one unit based
on reasonable and supportable information, or whethet a single contract contains components that need
to be separated and treated as if they were stand-alone contracts. As such, what is treated as a contract for
accounting purposes may differ from what is considered as a contract for other purposes (i.e., legal or
management). IFRS 17 also notes that no group for level of aggregation purposes may contain contracts
issued more than one year apart.

The Company has elected to group together those contracts that would fall into different groups only
because law, regulation or internal policies specifically constrains its practical ability to set a different price
or level of benefits for participants with different characteristics. The Company applied a full retrospective
approach for transition to IFRS 17. The portfolios are further divided into groups of contracts by quarter
of issue and profitability for recognition and measurement purposes. Hence, within each quatter of issue,
portfolios of contracts are divided into two groups, as follows:

* A group of contracts that are onerous at initial recognition (if any)
* A group of the temaining contracts in the portfolio (if any)
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Takaful and retakaful contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Level of aggregation (continued)

The profitability of groups of contracts is assessed by IFRS 17 committee that take into consideration
existing and new business. The Company assumes that no contracts in the portfolio are onerous at initial
recognition unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise. For contracts that are not onerous, the
Company assesses, at initial recognition, that thete is no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently by assessing the likelihood of changes in applicable facts and citcumstances.

The Company has a IFRS 17 Committee that meets at regular intetvals to determine the profitability
groupings of each portfolio of contracts. The committee acts as a forum to collect input from the pricing
and underwriting functions and assess the relevant facts and circumstances which indicate that groups of
contracts are onerous at initial recognition.

Below are some of the relevant facts and circumstances that the Company considers:

*  Evaluation of expected combines ratios;

*  Pricing information;

*  Results of similar contracts it has recognised; and

*  Environment factors, e.g., a change in market expetience or regulations.

The Company divides portfolios of retakaful contracts held applying the same principles set out above,
except that the references to onerous contracts refer to contracts on which there is a net gain on initial
recognition. For some groups of retakaful contracts held, a group can comptise a single contract.

Recognition
The Company recognises groups of takaful contracts it issues from the eatliest of the following;

*  The beginning of the coverage period of the group of contracts;

*  The date when the first payment from a participant in the group is due ot when the first payment is
received if there is no due date;

*  For a group of onerous contracts, if facts and circumstances indicate that the group is onerous the
Company recognises a group of retakaful contracts held:

*  If the retakaful contracts provide proportionate coverage at the later of the beginning of the coverage
petiod of the group, ot the initial recognition of any undetlying contract; and

*  In all other cases, from the beginning of the coverage petiod of the group the Company adds new
contracts to the group when they are issued or initiated.

Contract boundary

The Company includes in the measurement of a group of takaful contracts all the future cash flows within
the boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundary of a takaful contract if they
arise from substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting period in which the Company
can compel the participant to pay the contributions, or in which the Company has a substantive obligation
to provide the participant with services. A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

*  The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular participant and, as a result,
can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those risks; or
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Takaful and retakaful contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Contract boundary (continued)

Both of the following criteria are satisfied:

*  'The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of takaful contracts that
contain the contract and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk of
that portfolio; and

*  The pricing of the contributions for coverage up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not
take into account the risks that relate to periods after the reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected contributions or claims outside the boundary of the takaful contract
is not recognised. Such amounts relate to future takaful contracts.

Measurement - Contribution Allocation Approach
Takaful contracts — initial measurement

The Company applies the contribution allocation approach (CAA) to all the takaful contracts that it issues
and tetakaful contracts that it holds, as:

*  The coverage period of each contract in the group is one year or less, including coverage atising from
all contributions within the contract boundary.

Or

*  For contracts longer than one year, the Company has modelled possible future scenarios and
reasonably expects that the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage for the group
containing those contracts under the CAA does not differ materially from the measurement that would
be produced applying the general model. In assessing matetiality, the Company has also considered
qualitative factors such as the nature of the risk and types of its lines of business.

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Company measures the liability for
remaining coverage as the contributions, if any, received at initial recognition, minus any takaful acquisition
cash flows at that date, thete is no allowance for time value of money as the contributions are

mostly received within one year of the coverage petiod.

The Company measures its retakaful assets for a group of retakaful contracts that it holds on to the same
basis as takaful contracts that it issues, however, adapted to reflect the features of retakaful contracts held
that differ from takaful contracts issued, for example the generation of expenses or reduction in expenses
rather than revenue.

Takaful contracts — subsequent measurement

The Company measures the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage at the end of each
reporting period as the liability for remaining coverage at the beginning of the petiod:

*  Plus contributions received in the period;

*  Minus capitalised takaful acquisition cash flows;

*  Plus any amounts relating to the amortisation of the acquisition cash flows recognised as an expense
in the reporting period for the group;

*  Plus any adjustment to the financing component, whete applicable;
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Takaful and retakaful contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Measurement - Contribution Allocation Approach (continued)
Takaful contracts ~ subsequent measurement (continued)

*  Minus the amount recognised as takaful revenue for the coverage petiod; and
*  Minus any investment component paid or transfetred to the liability for incurred claims.

The Company estimates the liability fot incurted claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred
claims. The fulfilment cash flows incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and suppottable
information available without undue cost or effort about the amount, iming and uncertainty of those future
cash flows, they reflect current estimates from the perspective of the entity and include an explicit
adjustment for non-financial risk (the risk adjustment). The Company does not adjust the future cash flows
for the time value of money and the effect of financial risk for the measurement of liability for incurred
claims that are expected to be paid within one year of being incurred.

Retakaful contracts

The subsequent measutement of retakaful contracts held follows the same principles as those for takaful
contracts issued and has been adapted to reflect the specific features of retakaful held.

Takaful contracts — modification and derecognition
The Company derecognises takaful contracts when:

* The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (ie., discharged, cancelled or
expired);

The contract is modified such that the modification results in a change in the measutement model or the
applicable standard for measuring a component of the contract, substantially changes the contract
boundary, or requires the modified contract to be included in a different group. In such cases, the
Company derecognises the initial contract and recognises the modified contract as a new contract.

When a modification is not treated as a derecognition, the Company recognises amounts paid or received
for the modification with the contract as an adjustment to the relevant Lability for remaining coverage.

Presentation

The Company has presented separately, in the statement of financial position, the carrying amount of
groups of takaful contracts issued that ate assets, groups of takaful contracts issued that are liabilities,
retakaful contracts held that are assets and groups of retakaful contracts held that are liabilities.

Any assets or liabilities for takaful acquisition cash flows recognised before the corresponding takaful
contracts are included in the carrying amount of the related groups of takaful contracts issued.

The Company disaggregates the total amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income into a takaful service result, comptising takaful revenue and takaful service expense,
and takaful finance income or expenses.

The Company disaggregate the change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial and
non-financial portion which will be presented in takaful finance income or expenses and in takaful service
result respectively.

The Company separately presents income or expenses from retakaful contracts held from the expenses or
income from takaful conttracts issued.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Takaful and retakaful contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Takaful revenue

The takaful revenue for the period is the amount of expected conttibution receipts (excluding any
investment component) allocated to the period. The Company allocates the expected contribution receipts
to each period of coverage on the basis of the passage of time; but if the expected pattern of release of risk
duting the coverage period differs significantly from the passage of time, then on the basis of the expected
timing of incurred takaful service expenses.

The Company changes the basis of allocation between the two methods above as necessary, if facts and
circumstances change. The change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Loss components

'The Company assumes that no contracts are onerous at initial recognition unless facts and circumstances
indicate otherwise. If at any time during the coverage period, the facts and circumstances indicate that a
group of takaful contracts is onerous, the Company establishes a loss component as the excess of the
fulfilment cash flows that relate to the remaining coverage of the group over the carrying amount of the
liability for remaining coverage of the group. Accordingly, by the end of the coverage period of the group
of contracts the loss component will be zero.

Takaful finance income and expense

Takaful finance income or expenses comprise the change in the catrying amount of the group of takaful
contracts arising from:

*  The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
*  The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

The Company disaggregates takaful finance income or expenses in the profit ot loss. The impact of changes
in market profit rates on the value of the takaful assets and liabilities are reflected in the profit or loss.

Net income or expense from retakaful contracts held

The Company presents separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss, the amounts expected to
be recovered from retakaful operators, and an allocation of the retakaful contributions paid. The Company
treats retakaful cash flows that are contingent on claims on the underlying contracts as part of the claims
that are expected to be reimbursed under the retakaful contract held.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Surplus/deficit in participants’ fund

If the sutplus in the participants' fund at the end of a year is sufficiently large, a percentage of the surplus
shall be distributed between participants that have not made a claim, in proportion to their risk
contributions to the fund after accounting for reserves. The distributions will be approved by the
Company's Internal Sharia Supervision Committee. Any remaining sutplus after the disttibution will temain
in the participants' fund.

A deficiency in participants' fund is made good by a profit free loan (Qard Hasan) from the sharcholdets'
fund. This Qard Hasan is to be repaid from future surpluses arising from takaful operations on a priority
basis. This Qard Hasan is tested for impaitment annually and the portion of the Qard Hasan that is
considered impaired is chatged to the statement of income.

On liquidation of the fund, the accumulated surplus in the participants' fund, if any, after meeting all
obligations (including repayment of the outstanding amount of Qard Hasan), will be dealt with after
consulting with the Company's Internal Sharia Supetvision Committee. In case of an accumulated deficit,
any Qard Hasan outstanding at the time of liquidation will not be tepayable by the patticipants' fund and
the shareholders' fund will forego such outstanding amount.

Any deficit in the participants’ fund, except for deficits arising from a decline in the fair value of securities,
is financed by the shareholders through a Qard Hasan (loan without any profit). The Company maintains
a full provision against the Qard Hasan.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment
losses.

Depteciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement
of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of income.

The useful life considered in the calculation of depteciation of all the assets is 4 yeats.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation including
properties under construction for such purposes. Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Cost includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment propetty at
the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the cost of day to day servicing
of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects matket conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses atising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included in the statement of income in the petiod in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
ptopetty is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Transfer is made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use evidenced by the end
of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party. For a transfer from
investment property to owner occupled property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an investment propetty, the
Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment
up to the date of the change in use.

Fair value is determined by open market values based on valuations petformed by independent surveyors.
Leases
The Company recognises a right-to-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.

The right-to-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comptises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus as initial direct costs
incurred. The right-to-use is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-to-use or the end of the lease
term. The estimated useful life of the right-to-use asset is determined on the same basis as those of property
and equipment. In addition, the right-to-use is petiodically reduced by impairment losses, if any and adjusted
for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that ate not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the profit rate implicit in the lease ot, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental funding rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental funding
rates as the discount rate.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective funding cost method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in the future lease payments arising from a change in an index o rate, if there is a
change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a cotresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-to-use asset or is recorded in the profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-to-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-to-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘Property and equipment’ and the lease liabilities as a separate item in the statement of financial position.
Wakala fees

The Company manages the takaful operations on behalf of the participants for a wakala fee which is
recognised on an accrual basis. A similar amount is shown as expense statement of income atttibutable to
participants.

Profit income

Profit income is recognised on an accrual basis taking into account effective funding cost rates on the
instrument, on a time proportionate basis when it becomes receivable.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and ate measured initially at fair value plus transactions costs. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset i.e. the trade date. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and
rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following
categoties:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial assets for which:
- the Company’s business model is to hold them in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
profit on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective funding cost method, less
provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted whete the effect of discounting is immaterial.

These are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting petiod which are classified as non-current assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost comptise statutory deposits, cash and cash equivalents, due from related
parties and most other receivables.

i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’)

Investments in equity securities are classified as FVTOCI. At initial recognition, the Company can make an
itrevocable election (on an instrament-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity investments
at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.

Gain or loss atising from change in fair value of investments at FVTOCI is tecognised in other
comprehensive income and reported within the fait value reserve for investments at FVTOCI within equity.
When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is
not reclassified from the equity reserve to income statement but is reclassified to retained earnings.

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an investment
that is not held for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) on initial
recognition.

Financial assets at FVIPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of income.

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVIPL is recognised in statement of income
when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value measurement

For investments traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to stock
exchange quoted prices at the close of business on the statement of financial position date. Investments in
unquoted securities are measured at fair value, considering observable market inputs and unobsetvable
financial data of investees.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comptise amounts due to related parties and most other payables.
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective funding cost method.

Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

® financial assets that are debt instruments;

® financial guarantee contracts issued; and

® financing commitments issued.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for those financial
insttuments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition, in which case
12-month ECL are measured.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after reporting date.

ECL are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets (continued)

® financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

e financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

® undrawn financing commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive; and

® financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that
the Company expects to recover.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
only when thete is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, ot to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefifs
The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the setvice is rendered
such as paid vacation leave and bonuses) is recognised in the period in which the service is rendered.

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

A provision for employees' end of service benefits is made for the full amount due to employees for their
periods of service up to the reporting date in accordance with the UAE Labour Law and is teported as
separate line item under non-current liabilities. The entitlement to end of service benefits is based upon the
employees’ salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum setvice period as specified
in the UAE Labour Law. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to AED at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the statement of
financial position date are translated to AED at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange differences atising on translation are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using
the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The catrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each statement of financial
position date or whenever there is any indication of impairment. If any such indicaton exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment losses are recognised in
the income statement. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-generating unit's recoverable amount
exceeds its carrying amount.

Short term operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits, curtent accounts and fixed deposits which
have otiginal maturities of less than 3 months and are free from lien.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an
outflow of economic resources from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably.

Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a
legal ot constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.
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3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Where there ate a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will

be required in settlement is determined by consideting the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, whete the time value of money is material.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be vittually certain to collect from a third party with respect to
the obligation is recognised as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the
related provision.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is
considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognised, unless it was assumed in the coutse of a business
combination.

Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the recognition critetia of an
asset are considered contingent assets.

Equity, reserves and dividend payments

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Other details for reserves are mentioned in notes 19, 20 and 21 to the financial statements.
Retained earnings include all cutrent and prior period tetained profits or losses.

Dividend payable to equity shareholders is included in other labilities only when the dividend has been
approved in a general assembly meeting prior to the teporting date.

Segment reporting

Under IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, reported segments’ profits are based on internal management
reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. The measurement
policies used by the Company for segment reporting under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of this financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income, and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing this financial statements, the significant judgements made by management in applying the
accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that were applied
in the audited financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022, except for the below
judgements.

Takaful and retakaful contracts

The Company applies the CAA to simplify the measurement of takaful contracts. When measuring liabilities
for remaining coverage, the CAA is broadly similar to the Company’s previous accounting treatment under
IFRS 4. Howevet, when measuting liabilities for incurred claims, the Company now discounts cash flows
that are expected to occur more than one year after the date on which the claims are incurred and includes
an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Liability for remaining coverage

For takaful acquisition cash flows, the Company is eligible and chooses to capitalise all takaful acquisition
cashflows upon payments.

The effect of recognising takaful acquisition cash flows as an expense on initial recognition of group of
takaful contracts is to increase the liability for remaining coverage on initial recognition and reduce the
likelihood of any subsequent onerous contract loss. There would be an increased charge to profit or loss
on initial recognition, due to expensing acquisition cash flows, offset by an increase in profit released over
the coverage petiod. For groups of contracts that are onerous, the liability for remaining coverage is
determined by the fulfilment cash flows.

Liability for inenrred claims

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection
techniques, such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that 2 Company’s past claims development experience
can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim (including claims handling
costs), and claim numbers based on the observed development of earlier years and expected loss ratios.
Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further analysed by
geogtaphical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usnally separately
addtessed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in
otder to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future
rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical
claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is used to
assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect one-off occurrences, changes
in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims
inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features
and claims handling procedures) in order to artive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the
probability weighted expected value outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking account of all
the uncertainties involved.

Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation in profit rates, delays in
settlement and changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
{continued)

Discount rates

The Company use bottom-up approach to detive the discount rate. Under this approach, the discount rate
is determined as the risk-free yield, adjusted for differences in liquidity charactetistics between the financial
assets used to detive the risk-free yield and the relevant liability cash flows (known as an ‘illiquidity
contribution’). The risk-free rate was derived using swap rates available in the market denominated in the
same cutrency as the product being measured. When swap rates are not available, highly liquid soveteign
bonds with a AAA credit rating were used. Management uses judgment to assess liquidity charactedstics of
the liability cash flows.

Discount rates applied for discounting of future cash flows are listed below:

1year 3 years 5 years 10 years
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
% Y% % % % % % %
Takaful contracts issued
6.11 5.34 5.29 5.13 5.08 4,28 510 399
Retakaful contracts issued
6.11 5.34 5.29 5.13 5.08 4,28 510 399

Risk adjusiment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Company requires for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of takaful contracts. The risk
adjustment reflects an amount that a takaful operator would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that
future cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency)
approach at the 65th percentile. That is, the Company has assessed its indifference to uncertainty for all
product lines (as an indication of the compensation that it requites for bearing non-financial risk) as being
equivalent to the 65th percentile confidence level less the mean of an estimated probability distribution of
the future cash flows. The Company has estimated the probability distribution of the future cash flows, and
the additional amount above the expected present value of future cash flows required to meet the target
petcentiles.

Fair valne of inquoted securities

Fair value of unquoted securities has been determined by the management based on Earnings Multiple and
Net Assets Value Techniques using observable market data of compatable public entities, cettain discount
factors and unobservable financial data of respective non-public investees. Actual results may substantially
be different.

Investment properties fair value judgement

Fair value of investment property is estimated by two independent professional valuers for disclosure
purposes only, considering the rental yield (income approach). This estimate is made on an annual basis
considering market rent and average rental yield, Fair value was dependent on market factors and availability
of information.

Expected credit losses

Management reviews the provision for expected credit losses (ECL) at each reporting date by assessing the
recoverability of takaful and retakaful receivables. For non-takaful receivables the recoverability is assessed,
and expected credit losses are created in compliance with the simplified approach under the IFRS 9
methodology.
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5 Other financial assets

The Company’s other financial assets at the end of reporting year are detailed below:

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Other financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVIT'OCI)
Unquoted U.A.E. equity securities (a) 247 1,939
Quoted U.A.E. Sukuk (b) 21,293 56,946
Unquoted outside UAE 8,699 9,559
30,239 068,444
Attributable to:
Participants 1,625 9,060
Shareholders 28,614 59,384
30,239 68,444
Other financial assets measured at fair value through
profit and loss (FVIPL)
Quoted U.A.E. equity secutities (c) - 3,538
Unquoted U.A.E. equity secutities (a) 557 515
557 4,053

All other financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL) are attributable to
Shareholders.

{(2) The Company holds investments in unquoted equity securities of three entities as at 31 December 2023
(2022: three entities). Unobservable financial data used in determining the fair values of these unquoted
secutities has been extracted from their latest available audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022, and current market available information. (2022: financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021).

(b) Fair values have been determined by reference to quoted prices at the reporting date. During the year,
the Company purchased quoted sukuk amounting to AED 2.73 million (2022: AED 10.04 million)
while sold quoted sukuk amounting to AED 38.32 million (2022: AED Nil).

(c) Fair values have been determined by reference to quoted prices at the reporting date. Duting the year,
the Company sold quoted equity secutities amounting to AED 3.54 million (2022: AED 10.45 million)
while no purchase of quoted securities has been made in 2023 (2022: AED 3.48 million).

The movement in other financial assets are as follows:

FVTOCI FVIPL
2023 2022 2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Fair value, at the beginning of
the year 68,444 57,977 4,053 11,225
Purchased duting the year 2,734 15,579 - 3,475
Sold duting the year (38,323) - (3,538) (10,446)
Change in fair value (2,616) (5,112) 42 (201)
Fair value, at the end of the
year 30,239 68,444 557 4,053
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6 Cash and bank balances

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Cash on hand 6 19

Bank balances:
Wakala deposits 193,881 82,812
Current accounts 10,276 33,700
204,163 116,531

Astributable fo:

Participants 107,717 36,630
Shareholders 96,446 79,901
204,163 116,531

The profit rates on the Wakala deposits with banks range from 4.60% to 5.85% (2022: 0.60 % to 5.10%).

Walkala deposits amounting to AED 190.65 million (2022: AED 45.51 million) have maturity mote than three
months.

All cash and bank balances are maintained within U.A.E.

7 Takaful and retakaful contracts

The breakdown of groups of takaful and retakaful contracts issued, and retakaful contracts held, that are
in an asset position and those in a liability position is set out in the table below:

2023 2022
Restated
Assets Liabilides Net Assets Liabilities Net
AED000 AED000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000
Takaful contracts issued
Motor - (96,500)  (96,500) - (73,578)  (73,578)
Medical & group life - (27,465)  (27,465) - (30,140)  (30,140)
General - (23,985)  (23,985) - (19,596)  (19,596)
Total takaful contracts
issued - (147,950) (147,950) - (123314) (123314)
Retakaful contracts held
Motor 1,565 (4h} 1,564 8,214 - 8,214
Medical & group life 8,698 (556) 8,142 789 (3406) 443
General 6,903 (790) 6,113 8,224 - 8,224
Total Retakaful contracts
held 17,166 (1,347) 15,819 17,227 (346) 16,881

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for takaful contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage
and the liability for incurred claims

The Company disaggregates information to provide disclosute in respect of major product lines separately:
Motor takaful, medical and group life, and general retakaful issued.

This disaggtegation has been determined based on how the Company is managed. The roll-forward of the
net asset or liability for takaful contracts issued, showing the liability for remaining coverage and the liability
for incutred claims, is disclosed in the table on the next page.
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Arabian Scandinavian Takaful Company (PLC) — Takaful —~ ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

8 Prepayments and other receivables

2023 - 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Accrued profit 3,844 1,089
Prepaid expenses 1,133 1,047
Rent receivable (net)* 336 480
Advances and deposits 292 306
Amounts due from broker - 1,105
Other receivables 522 651
6,127 4,678

Attributable to:
Participants 1,318 1,140
Shareholders 4,809 3,538
6,127 4,678

*The rent receivable is net of expected credit losses of AED 700,000 (2022: AED 700,000).

9 Related parties balances and transactions

Amounts due from/to related parties were as follows:

2023 2022
AED000 AED000
Amounts due from related parties:
Related parties due to common directorship
Al Redha Insurance Brokers (LLC), Dubai* - 903
Others - 85
- 988
Amounts due to related parties:
Related parties due to comnion awnership
Othets 2,671 27

*After the acquisition this is not related party of the Company.

All amount due from/to related parties are attributable to participants.
The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received.

Investment property amounting to AED Nil (2022: AED 6 million) is registered in the name of related party
(refer to note 12).

During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties till 31 May 2023 (prior
to change in ownership):

2023 2022
AED’000 AED000

Transactions with related parties:
Contribution written through a related party broker 3,363 7,369
Gross written contribution 1,107 1,716
Policy acquisition cost paid 507 1,173
Management expenses (net) 24 1,626
Claims paid 27 20
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Arabian Scandinavian Takaful Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

9 Related parties balances and transactions (continued)

Duting the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with telated parties from 1 June 2023
to 31 December 2023 (subsequent to change in ownetship):

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Transactions with related parties:
Retakaful share of ceded business 2,502 -
Commission on retakaful share of ceded business 5 -
Gross written contribution 3,070 -
Other transaction 672 =
Recovery claims 642 -
Key management personnel remuneration:
2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Short-term benefits 613 1,155
Long-term benefits 61 75
Board of directors’ temuneration 27 700
10 Statutory deposits
2023 2022
AETD’000 AED’000
Held with 2 local bank in Dubai, UAE 10,000 10,000

Statutory deposit represents a Wakala deposit under lien against the guarantees issued in favour of Central Bank
of U.A.E. in accordance with UAE Federal Law No 48 of 2023 (previously Federal Law No.6 of 2007).

11 Due from participants/due to shareholders

The balance consists of the net of Wakala fees balances that are due to the shareholders from the
participants amounting to AED 30.76 million (2022: AED 67.76 million).

12 Investment properties
Other real

Land estate Total
AED’000 AED000 AED000

2023
At 1 January 9,500 151,141 160,641
Disposal during the year (9,500) (77,156) (86,656)
Change in fair value during the year (note 25) - (6,475) (6,475)
At 31 December - 67,510 67,510

2022
At 1 January 9,363 149,352 158,715
Change in fair value during the year (note 25) 137 1,789 1,926
At 31 December 9,500 151,141 160,641

On 31 December 2023, two independent and experienced professional valuers estimated the fair value of
investment property at AED 67 million and AED 68 million respectively (31 December 2022: two independent
and experienced professional valuets estimated the fair value of investment property at AED 160.71 million and
AED 160.58 million respectively).
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) — Takaful — ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

12 Investment properties (continued)

Company recognises the average of fair value from both valuers. The valuers hold relevant professional
qualifications and experience. Investment properties is held for capital appreciation and rental purposes.

Investment property amounting to AED Nil (2022: AED 6 million) is registered in the name of heirs of
Mohammad Amin Al Kazim (telated party) held for the beneficial interest of the Company. This investment
property has been sold during the yeat.

Details of the investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Fair value as at
31 December

31 December 2023 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 3

AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000

Investment propetties - - 67,510 160,641

As the investment properties are valued using income capitalisation approach, a slight increase in the
capitalisation rate used would result in a significant dectrease in fair value, and vice versa.

All investment properties are located in U.A.E.

The property rental income earned by the Company from its investment properties, which are leased under
operating leases on an annual basis and the direct operating expenses arising in the management of the
investment properties are as follows:

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Rental income 8,701 9,591
Direct operating expenses (903) (1,451)
Net income from investment properties 7,798 8,140
13 Property and equipment
Furniture Motor Right-of-
and fixtures vehicles use assets Total
2023 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Cost
At 1 January 5,698 270 2,946 8,914
Additions during the yeat 92 - - 92
Disposal duting the year - (250) = (250)
At 31 December 5,790 20 2,946 8,756
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 4,852 169 1,955 6,976
Charge for the year 384 18 495 897
Disposal during the year - 171 - (171)
At 31 Decembet 5,236 16 2,450 7,702
Carrying value
At 31 December 2023 554 4 496 1,054
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 Property and equipment (continued)

Furniture Motor  Right-of-use
and fixtures vehicles assets Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
2022
Cost
At 1 January 5,233 272 2,946 8,451
Additions during the year 465 63 . 528
Disposal during the year - (65) - (65)
At 31 Decembet 5,698 270 2,946 8,914
Accnimnlated depreciation
At 1 January 4,538 119 1,459 6,116
Charge for the yeatr 314 115 496 925
Disposal during the year s (65) - (65)
At 31 December 4,852 169 1,955 6,976
Carrying value
At 31 December 2022 - 846 101 991 1,938

At 31 December 2023, the cost of fully depreciated property and equipment that was still in use amounted to

AED 5.16 million (2022: AED 4.15 million).

14 Intangible assets

Software:

Cost

At 1 January

Additions during the year
At 31 December

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January

Charge for the year

At 31 December

Carrying value at 31 December

15 Other liabilities

Contribution reserve withheld
Accrued expenses

Deferred rental income

Lease liability

Other

Attributable to:
Participants
Shareholdets

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
1,127 815

125 312

1,252 1,127

552 334

292 218

844 552

408 575

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
6,404 6,527
3,882 2,996

475 1,065

525 854

4,905 4,134
16,191 15,576
9,284 8,153
6,907 7423
16,191 15,576
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

16 Qard Hasan

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
@) Deficit in participants’ fund:
As at 1 January (88,168) (47,902)
Deficit during the year (70,246) (40,266)
As at 31 December (158,414) (88,168)
2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
(ii) Qard Hasan from shareholders
As at 1 January 88,168 47,902
Addition during the year ‘ 70,246 40,266
As at 31 December 158,414 88,168

The shareholders have funded the deficit in the participants’ fund in accordance with the Company’s policy
through a Qard Hasan (profit free loan with no repayment terms). During the current year the participants
fund reported a deficit amounting to AED 70.25 million (2022: Deficit of AED 40.27 million).

17 Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity
2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,386 2,278
Charged during the year 337 261
Paid during the year (1,352) (153)
Balance at the end of the year 1,371 2,386
18 Share capital
2023 2022
AED(00 AED’000
Authorised and issued and fully paid:
154,000,000 ordinary shares of AED 1 each (2022: 154,000,000) 154,000 154,000

19 Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and Article 241 of the Federal Law No. 32 of 2021,
a minimum of 10% of the Company’s annual net profits must be transferred to a non-distributable legal reserve.
As per the Company’s Articles of Association, such transfers are required until the balance in the legal reserve
equals 50% of the Company’s paid-up share capital. No transfer to legal reserve has been made during the year
as it has already reached 50% of the paid-up share capital (2022: Nil).

20 Retakaful reserve

In accordance with Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates’ Board of Directors’ Decision No. 23, Article
34, an amount of AED 215,725 (2022: AED 170,000) based on the tretakaful share of contribution at a rate
of 0.5% was transferred from retained earnings to retakaful reserve. The reserve is not available for
distribution and will not be disposed of without prior approval from Central Bank of the UAE.

21 Investments revaluation reserve - FVTOCI

This reserve records gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of other financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

22 Gross written contributions

Details relating to gross written contributions are disclosed below to comply with the requirements of
CBUAE and are not calculated as per the requirements of IFRS 17.

Life Medical
2023 insurance insurance Motor Others Total
AED000 AED000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000

Direct written contributions 1,113 27,544 39,219 36,178 104,054
Assumed business
Foreign - - - = -
Local - - - 257 257
Total assumed business - - - 257 257
Total gross written contributions 1,113 27,544 39,219 36,435 104,311
2022
Direct written contributions 787 40,988 57,525 29,553 128,853
Assumed business
Foreign - - - - "
Local = - - 705 705
Total assumed business - 2 - 705 705
Total gross written contributions 787 40,988 57,525 30,258 129,558
23 Takaful service expense
Medical &
Motor General life Total
AED’000 AED000 AED000 AED’000
2023
Incurred claims and other expenses 111,023 14,405 34,828 160,256
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of
those losses (note 7) 6,157 - 826 6,983
Changes to liabilities for incutred claims (4,909) (5,537) (4,521) (14,967)
112,271 8,868 31,133 152,272
2022 (Restated)
Incurred claims and other expenses 80,090 8,885 48,733 137,708
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of
those losses (note 7) 9,590 - 943 10,533
Changes to liabilities for incutred claims (16,317) 4,785 (12,006) (23,538)
73,363 13,670 37,670 124,703
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

24 Net takaful financial result
Medical &
Motor General life Total
AED000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000
2023
Due to changes in profit rates and other
financial assumptions 668 188 242 1,098
Total takaful finance expenses from
takaful contracts issued 668 188 242 1,098
Due to changes in profit rates and other
financial assumptions 186 142 (54) 274
Retakaful finance income from retakaful
contracts held 186 142 (54) 274
2022 (Restated)
Due to changes in profit rates and other
financial assumptions 179 7 71 257
Total takaful finance expenses from takaful
contracts issued 179 7 71 257
Due to changes in profit rates and other
financial assumptions 256 1 17 272
Retakaful finance income from retakaful
contracts held 256 €3] 17 272
25 Investment income
2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Profit on disposal of financial investments at FVTPL 15 1
Unrealised gain /(loss) on financial investments at FVTPL 42 (201)
Dividends from financial investments at FVTPL 23 671
Income from investment properties 7,798 8,140
Profit on sukuk 1,488 2,359
Loss on sale of Sukuk at FVTOCI (3,019) -
Dividend from other financial assets 531 500
Income from wakala deposit 7,811 1,645
Loss on sale of investment properties (3,181) -
Profit on sale of asset 68 1
(Loss)/gain on fair value of investment properties (note 12) (6,475) 1,926
Expenses allocated to investment (388) (726)
4,713 14,316
Alttributable to:
Participants 3,103 692
Shareholders 1,610 13,624
4,713 14,316
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26 Wakala fee and Mudarib’s share
Wakala fees

Wakala fee for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to AED 31.29 million (2022: AED 38.87 million)
the fee is calculated at maximum of 30% of gross written contribution of AED 104.31 million (2022: AED
129.56 million) without any deduction of policy acquisiion cost. Wakala fee is charged to the statement of
income when incurred.

Miudarib's share

The shareholders also manage the participants’ investment funds and charge Mudarib’s share. Mudarib’s share
is charged at 30% of realised investment income.

27 General and administrative expenses
2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Staff cost 12,868 13,471
Third party administrators and other related expenses 4,116 6,850
Legal and professional fees 2,053 1,112
Depreciation and amortisation 1,190 1,086
Policy registration fees 920 912
Takaful expense 903 609
End of service benefits and pension* 525 47
Marketing expenses 327 244
Bank charges 387 506
Short term lease 239 290
Board of directors’ remuneration (note 9) 27 700
Other expenses 1,491 1,451
25,046 27,702

*Social contributions during the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to AED 226,105 (2022: 261,396
AED).

28 Segmental information

For management purposes the Company is organised into two business segments; general takaful
management and investment. The general takaful segment comprises the takaful business undertaken by
the Company on behalf of Participants. Investment comprises investment and cash management for the
Company’s own account. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable
operating segments.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which in certain respects is measured differenty
from profit or loss in the financial statements.

Except for Wakala fees, and Qard Hassan, no other inter-segment transactions occurted during the year. If
any other transaction were to occur, transfer prices between operating segments are set on an arm's length
basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
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Arabian Scandinavian Insurance Company (PLC) - Takaful — ASCANA Insurance
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

29 Loss per share

Loss per share are calculated by dividing the loss for the year by the number of ordinary shares outstanding as of
the end of the year as follows:

Restated

2023 2022

Loss for the year (in AED’000) (76,530) (30,677)
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 154,000,000 154,000,000
Basic and diluted loss per share (in AED) (0.497) (0.199)

Diluted loss per share as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are equivalent to basic loss per share
as the Company did not issue any new instrument that would impact loss per share when executed.

30 Zakat

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Zakat amounting AED per share will not be borne by the Company on
behalf of shareholders AED 0.0029 per share (2022: AED 0.0055 per share).

31 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances net of
wakala deposits in banks with maturity over three months. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year as
shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial position

as follows: .
2023 2022

AED’000 AED’000
Cash and bank balances (note 6) 204,163 116,531
Wakala deposits with maturity over 3 months (190,653) (45,509)
Cash and cash equivalents 13,510 71,022

32 Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

® to comply with the takaful capital requirements required by UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended.
The Company manages its capital on a basis of its minimum regulatory capital position presented in the
table below:

® to safegnard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concetn so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

® to provide an adequate retutn to shareholders by pricing takaful contracts commensurately with the level
of risk.

Section 2 of the Financial Regulations for Takaful Companies (the “Regulations”) issued by the Central Bank
of UAE identifies the required solvency margin to be held in addition to takaful liabilities. The solvency
margin must be maintained at all imes throughout the year. The Company is subject to the Regulations which
has been complied with during the year. The Company has incorporated in its policies and procedures the
necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with these Regulations.
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32 Capital risk management (continued)

The table below summatises the Minimum Capital Requirement, Minimum Guarantee Fund and Solvency
Capital Requirement of the Company and the total capital held to meet these solvency matgins as defined in
the Regulations. The Company has disclosed the solvency position for the year ended as at 31 December
2023,

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

AED’000 AED’000
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 100,000 100,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 29,415 41,170
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 22,723 25,692
Basic Own Funds 154,146 118,818
MCR Solvency Margin - Surplus 54,146 18,818
SCR Solvency Margin - Surplus 124,731 77,648
MGF Solvency Margin — Surplus 131,423 93,126

In accordance with Circular number CBUAE/BIS/2023/6163 of CBUAE dated 15 December 2023, the
assets which are not in the Company’s name should not be considered as admissible in regulatoty statement
of financial position. In the reported solvency figures as at 31 December 2023 AED Nil (2022: AED 6
million) as mentioned above, assets are not in the name of the Company and owned by a related party (refer
to note 12).

Based on the Central Bank of UAE regulatory requirements, the minimum regulatory capital required is AED
100 million {31 December 2022: AED 100 million) against which the paid up capital of the Company is AED
154 million (31 December 2022: AED 154 million).

The Company and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally imposed capital
requirements throughout the year. There have been no changes in the Company’s management of capital
during the year.
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33 Financial instruments

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, retakaful
assets and takaful liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that the in the long-term its investment
proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligations atising from its takaful contracts. The most important
components of this financial risk are profit rate risk, equity price tisk, foreign currency tisk and credit risk.

These risks arise from open positions in profit rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed
to general and specific market movements. The risks that the Company primatily faces due to the nature of
its investments and financial liabilities are profit rate risk and equity price risk.

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

Categories of financial instruments

Restated
2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Financial assets

Other financial assets measured at FVTOCI (note 5) 30,239 68,444
Other financial assets measured at FVIPL (note 5) 557 4,053
Statutory deposits 10,000 10,000
Retakaful contact assets 17,166 17,227
Other receivables 4,994 3,631
Cash and bank balances (note 6) 204,163 116,531
Total financial assets 267,119 219,886

Financial liabilities
Takaful & retakaful contract liabilities) 149,297 123,660
Other liabilities 9,312 7,987
‘Total financial liabilities 158,609 131,647

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.

34 Risk management

Takaful risk

The risk under any one takaful contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the nature of takaful contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of takaful contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Company faces under its takaful contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments
exceed the carrying amount of the takaful liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims
and benefits are greater than estimated. Insured events are random, and the actual number and amount of claims
and benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using statistical techniques.
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34 Risk management (continued)
Takaful risk (continued)

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar takaful contracts, the smaller the relative variability about
the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board
by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its takaful underwriting strategy to
diversify the type of takaful risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large
population of risks to reduce the varability of the expected outcome.

The Company manages tisks through its underwriting strategy, adequate retakaful arrangements and proactive
claims handling, The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in
terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Undetwriting limits ate in place to enforee approprtiate
risk selection ctiteria.

Frequency and severity of claims

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, re-price the tisk, it can impose deductbles and it has
the right to reject the payment of a fraudulent claim. Takaful contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third
parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation).

Property takaful contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial replacement value of the properties
and contents insured and claim payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable on occurrence of
the insured event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement ot indemnity for contents and time taken to
restart operations for business interruption are the key factors that influence the level of claims under these
policies. Property takaful contracts are subdivided into four risk categories: fire, business interruption, weather
damage and theft. The takaful risk arising from these contracts is not concentrated in any of the tertitories in
which the Company operates, and there is a balance between commercial and personal propetties in the overall
portfolio of insured buildings.

The retakaful arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such retakaful arrangements
is that the Company should not suffer net takaful losses of a set limit of AED 500,000 (2022: AED 250,000)
AED 30,000 (2022: AED 30,000) and AED 1,000,000 (2022: AED 500,000) in any one claim for motor, medical
and other non-motor respectively. The Company has survey units dealing with the mitigation of risks sutrounding
claims. This unit investigates and recommends ways to improve risk claims. The risks are reviewed individually
every year and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the undetlying facts, current law, jursdiction,
contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively manages and pursues early settlements
of claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.

Sources of nncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on takaful contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract
term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision
includes incurred but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater
degree of uncertainty compared to the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the
Company, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to the
takaful company until many years after the event that gave tise to the claims. For some takaful contracts, the
IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater variations between initial
estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these liabilities. In
estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company considers information
available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in
previous periods. Latge claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis ot projected separately in order to allow
for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.
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34 Risk management (continued)

Takaful risk (continued)
Sounrces of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continned)

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incutred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established.

The amount of takaful claims is particulatly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of
legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. Takaful contracts are also subject to the emergence of new
types of latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the end of reporting period.

Where possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections
given by the various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most
appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and
the extent of the development of each accident year.

The initial loss-ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous
years’ experience, adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market experience and
historical claims inflation. The initial estimate of the loss ratios used for the current year (before retakaful)
are analysed below by type of risk where the insured operates for current and prior year contribution earned.

Type of risk

2023 2022
Motor 226% 143%
Medical 101% 90%
General 16% 2%

Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with these takaful contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that
complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. Internal data is derived mostly from the Company’s quarterly
claims reports and screening of the actual takaful contracts carried out at the repotting date to derive data for
the contracts held. The Company has reviewed the individual contracts and in particular the industries in
which the insured companies operate and the actual exposure years of claims. This information is used to
develop scenarios related to the latency of claims that are used for the projections of the ultimate number of
claims.

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of
the technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this
has meant that different techniques or combinations of techniques have been selected for individual accident
years or groups of accident years within the same class of business.

Concentration of risks
The takaful risk arising from takaful contracts is concentrated mainly in the United Arab Emirates.

The table on next page sets out the concentration of contract liabilities by type of contract:
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34 Risk management (continued)
Takaful risk (continued)

Concentration of risks (continned)

Retakaful

Gross share
liabilities of liabilities Net liabilities
2023 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Motor 96,500 (1,564) 94,936
Medical & group life 27,465 (8,142) 19,323
General 23,985 (6,113) 17,872
Total 147,950 (15,819) 132,131

Retakaful

Gross share
liabilities of labilities Net liabilities
2022 (restated) AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Motor 73,578 (8,214) 65,364
Medical & group life 30,140 (443) 29,697
General 19,596 (8,224) 11,372
Total 123,314 (16,881) 106,433

Retakafud risk

In common with other takaful companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large takaful
claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangement with other parties for
retakaful purposes.

To minimise its exposute to significant losses from retakaful insolvencies, the Company evaluates the
financial condition of its retakaful companies and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar
geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the retakaful. Retakaful ceded contracts do not
telieve the Company from its obligations to participants. The Company remains liable to its patticipants for
the portion reinsured to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet the obligations assumed under the
retakaful agreements.

Sensitivities
The liability for incurred claims is sensitive to the key assumptions in the table below. It has not been possible
to quantify the sensitivity of certain assumptions such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation

process. The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact on gross and net liabilities, net profit and equity
for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant.

The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impacts, but to
demonstrate the impact due to changes in each assumption, assumptions had to be changed on an individual
basis.

It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non-linear. The method used for deriving
sensitivity information and significant assumptions did not change from the previous period.
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34 Risk management (continued)

Takaful risk (continued)

Sensitivities (continued)

2023

Weighted average term to
settlement

Expected loss

Inflation rate

Weighted average term to
settlement

Expected loss

Inflation rate

2022 (restated)

Weighted average term to
settlement

Expected loss

Inflation rate

Weighted average term to
settlement

Expected loss

Inflation rate

Financial risk

Market risk

Change in
assumptions

+10%
+10%
+1%

-10%
-10%
-1%

Change in
assumptions

+10%
+10%
+1%

-10%
-10%
-1%

Impact on
net profit
gross of
reinsurance
AED000

273
9,619
27

(273)
(9,619)
27)

Impact on

ne

t profit

gross of
reinsurance
AED’000

136
6,364
14

(136)
(6,364)
(14

Impacton Impacton Impacton
net profit equity  equity net
net of gross of of
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
AED’000 AED000 AED’000

191 273 191

6,985 9,619 6,985

19 27 19

(191) (273) (191)
(6,985) (9,619) (6,985)
(19) 27) (19)
Impact on Impact on Impact on
net profit equity equity net
net of gross of of

reinsurance  relnsurance  reinsurance
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

128 136 128
4619 6,364 4619
13 14 13
(128) (136) (128)
(4,619) (6,364) (4,619)
(13) (14 (13)

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, profit rates and equity price risk.

Foreign currency risk

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities are
denominated in Arab Emirates Dirhams, other G.C.C. currencies or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial

loss to the Company.
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34 Risk management (continued)
Financial risk (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

¢ retakaful’ share of takaful liabilities;

* amounts due from retakaful in respect of claims already paid;
* amounts due from takaful contract holders; and

* amounts due from takaful intermediaries.

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterpatties as a means of mitigating the
tisk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the
management annually.

Retakaful is used to manage takaful risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as primary
policyholder. If a retakaful fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment
to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of retakaful company is considered on an annual basis by reviewing
their financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract.

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it
conducts regular business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms,
such as the right of offset where counterpatties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. Management
information reported to the management includes details of provisions for impairment on takaful receivables
and subsequent write-offs. Exposures to individual participants and groups of participants are collected
within the ongoing monitoring of the controls. Where there exists significant exposure to individual
patticipants, or homogenous groups of participants, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for
retakaful is catried out by the Company.

Takaful receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of takaful receivable.

The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
countetparties having similar characteristic, other than takaful receivables at the end of reporting period. The
Company defines counterparties as having similar charactetistics if they are related entities. Concentration of
credit risk did not exceed 10% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year. The credit risk on liquid
funds is limited because the counterparties are banks registered in the United Arab Emirates.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment
losses, represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with management, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s shott, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table on next page summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial instruments. The
contractual maturities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The maturity profile is monitored by
management to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.
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34 Risk management (continued)
Financial risk (continued)
Liquidity tisk

The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
repayment arrangements is given below:

Less than 91-180 181-365 Above
2023 90 days days days 365 days Total
AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Financial assets

At FVTOCI (note 5) - - - 30,239 30,239
At FVTPL (note 5) - - - 557 557
Statutory deposits - - - 10,000 10,000
Retakaful contract assets 17,166 - - - 17,166
Other receivables 2,979 1,308 234 473 4,994
Cash and bank balances -
profit bearing 45,791 49,104 18,500 90,487 203,882
Cash and bank balances -
non-profit bearing 281 - - - 281
66,217 50,412 18,734 131,756 267,119
Financial liabilities
Takaful and retakaful
contract liabilities 149,297 - - - 149,297
Other liabilities 3,180 1,436 2,604 2,092 9,312
152,477 1,436 2,604 2,092 158,609
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34 Risk management (continued)

Financial risk (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Less than 91-180 181-365 Above
2022 (restated) 90 days days days 365 days Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial assets
At FVTOCI (note 5) - = - 68,444 68,444
At FVIPL (note 5) - 3,538 - 515 4,053
Statutory deposits - - - 10,000 10,000
Retakaful contract assets 17,227 - - - 17,227
Other receivables 3,532 - - 99 3,631
Cash and bank balances -
profit bearing 37,303 35,207 10,302 - 82,812
Cash and bank balances -
non-profit bearing 30,605 3,114 = - 33,719
88,667 41,859 10,302 79,058 219,886
Financial liabilities
Takaful and retakaful
contract liabilities 123,660 - - - 123,660
Other liabilities 5,709 - - 2,278 7,987
129,369 - - 2,278 131,647
Equity price risk
Sensitivity analysis

At the reporting date if the equity prices are 10% higher/lower as per the assumptions mentioned below and
all the other variables were held constant the Company’s statement of income,/compzehensive income would
have increased/decreased by AED 0.95 million (2022: AED 1.6 million).

Method and assunptions for sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposure to equity price risk as at the end of the
reporting petiod.

® As at the reporting date if equity prices are 10% higher/lower on the market value uniformly for all
equities while all other variables are held constant, the impact on statement of income and other
comprehensive income has been shown above.

e A 10% change in equity prices has been used to give a realistic assessment as a plausible event.
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35 Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measutement date. As such, differences can atise between
book values and the fair value estimates. Undetlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the
Company is a going concern without any intention or requitement to matetially curtail the scale of its
operation or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Fair value of financial instraments carvied at amortised cost

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate theit fair values.

Valnation technigues and assumptions applied for the purposes of meassiring fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined using similar valuation techniques
and assumptions as used in the audited annual financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022,

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

® Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

® Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. detived
from prices); and

® Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value as at Relationship
Valuation Significant of
Financial assets 2023 2022 Fair value techniques unobservable unobservable
AED’000 AED000 hieratchy and key input inputs to fair
inputs value
Financial assets
at FVTOCI
Unquoted equity 8,698 9,559 Level 3 Net assets Net assets Higher the net
securities valuation value assets value of
method investees,
higher the fair
value,
Unquoted equity 247 1,939 Level3  Multiple base Relative value  Higher the
secutities approach multiple based
value of
investees,
higher the fair
value.
Quoted debt 21,293 56,946 Level 1 Quoted bid  None N/A
Securities prices in an

active market.
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35 Fair value measurements (continued)
Fair value as at Relationship
Valuation  Significant of
Financial assets 2023 2022 Fair value techniques unobservable unobservable
AED’000 AED’000 hierarchy and key input inputs to fair
inputs value
Financial assets
at FVIPL
Quoted equity - 3,538 Levell Quoted bid  None N/A
Securities prices in an
active
market.
Unquoted equity 557 515 Level3  Netassets Net assets Higher the net
Securities valuation value assets value of
method investees,
higher the fair
value.

There were no transfers between each of level during the year. There ate no financial liabilities which should
be measured at fair value and accordingly no disclosure is made in the above table.

36 Contingent liabilities

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Lettets of guarantees 10,421 10,421

The Company is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. Although the ultimate outcome of
these claims cannot presently be determined, adequate provisions have been made for any liability that may
result, based on management’s best estimates.

37 Corporate Tax

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released the Federal Decree Law No. 47 of 2022 on the
Taxation of Corporations and Businesses (the Law) to enact a Federal Corporate Tax (CT) regime in the
UAE. The CT regime will become effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2023,

The Cabinet of Ministers Decision No. 116/2022 effective from 2023, specifies the threshold of income over
which the 9% tax rate would apply and accordingly, the Law is now considered to be substantively enacted.
A rate of 9% will apply to taxable income exceeding AED 375,000, a rate of 0% will apply to taxable income
not exceeding AED 375,000.

For the Company, current taxes shall be accounted for as appropriate in the financial statements for the
period beginning 1 January 2024. In accordance with IAS 12 income Taxes, the Company has assessed the
deferred tax implications for the year ended 31 December 2023 and, after considering its interpretations of
applicable tax law, official pronouncements, cabinet decisions and ministerial decisions (especially with regard
to transition rules), it has been concluded that it is not material.
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38 internal Sharia Supervisory Committee

The Company’s business activities are subject to the supervision of its Intetnal Shatia Supervision Committee
(ISSC) consisting of three members appointed by the shareholders. ISSC performs a supervisoty tole in order
to determine whether the operations of the Company are conducted in accordance with Sharia rules and
principles.

According to the Internal Sharia Supervision Committee, the Company is requited to identify any income
deemed to be detived from transactons not acceptable under Islamic Sharia rules and principles, as
interpreted by Internal Sharia Supervision Committee, and to set aside such amount in a separate account for
Shareholders who may resolve to pay the same for local charitable causes and activities.

39 Post-reporting date events

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and the date of
authorisation of these financial statements.
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